
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 

Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 

Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 27 September 2021 

 

 

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE  
COMMITTEE 

 

On: Tuesday 5 October 2021 At: 10.00 am 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford 

 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all Audit & Governance meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be filmed for live or 

subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 
Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 

Councillors: D Bushby, K Hepple, R Lock and P Pennington 
 
Non elected Members:  

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence for the meeting. 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 4 - 11) 

 Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 27 July 2021. 
 

3.   Action List (Page 12) 



 
 

 

4.   Declaration of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 

their interest when the item is considered. 
 

5.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

6.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair  

7.   Audit Reports Issued To Date (Pages 13 - 18) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) Manager 
 

• Cemeteries Report 
• Debtors Report 
• Home working, security and capacity 

• Harbour 
 

8.   Effectiveness of the Audit Committee (Pages 19 - 25) 

 For members to input into the self-assessment checklist (DAP Manager) 
 

9.   Audit Actions (Pages 26 - 27) 

 To receive an update from the Section 151 officer. 
 

10.   Going Concern Report (Pages 28 - 35) 

 To receive update from the Section 151 officer 

 

11.   Annual Governance Statement (Pages 36 - 53) 

 To receive a report from the Service Improvement Officer. 

 

12.   Audit finding report 2020-21 statement of accounts (Pages 54 - 92) 

 To receive a report from Grant Thornton. 
 

13.   Approval of the 2020-21 Financial Statements and presentation from the 
Section 151 Officer (Pages 93 - 100) 

14.   Letter of Representation - Grant Thornton (Pages 101 - 105) 

15.   Forward Plan (Page 106) 

16.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 

disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 



 
 

 

17.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

18.   Verbal update on Emerging Risk  

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 

 

 



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford 
 

Tuesday, 27 July 2021 - 2.00 pm 

 
PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 

 
 Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 

 

 Councillors D Bushby and K Hepple 
 

 
ALSO PRESENT D Heyes - Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 
 C Dobbs - Service Improvement Officer 

 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 
Officer 

 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 
 

 A Davies - Grant Thornton 

 R Hutchins - Devon Audit Partnership 
 P Middlemass - Devon Audit Partnership 

  
76.    MINUTES  

 

The Chair ran through the minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 30 March 2021 
and no issues were raised. 

 
Proposed by: Councillor Philip Hackett, seconded by Councillor Ruth Craigie and - 
 

Resolved: 
 

That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
(Vote: Yes – 3, Abstain - 1) 

 
77.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

78.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 

The agenda as circulated was agreed. 
 

79.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 

THE CHAIR  
 

There were no urgent matters brought forward. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

 
80.    GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT  

 

The Chair introduced the Engagement Manager from Grant Thornton to the 

meeting and it was requested the 3 items for Grant Thornton be discussed together 
due to cross over.  With the agreement of the Chair items 80, 86 and 87 were 
discussed and a summary is below.   

 
The Engagement Manager directed Committee Members to Page 15 -16 of the 

Update Report and highlighted the key messages on progress.  
 
It was confirmed that work is on schedule and no issues have been identified to 

date.   There are some areas that need to be progressed and the Engagement 
Manager provided members with some insight on this before it was discussed as 

part of the report on audit findings to date.  
 
The Engagement Manager talked through the significant risks, highlighted in the 

audit plan. 
 

 ‘Management override of control’ which links to journals work and work 
around estimations. The aim is to complete this work by the end of the week 
and there are currently no issues to bring to the attention of Committee 

Members.    
 

 Work on Pensions and the significant estimation within the financial 
statements is in progress and it was confirmed there are no issues to bring 

to attention of Committee Members. The Engagement Manager highlighted 
the letter of assurance that comes with this work – Grant Thornton is 
awaiting this letter in order to complete the work.  

 

 Work on Property, Plant and Equipment – it was confirmed that the aim is to 

complete the bulk of the work by the end of week.  The Engagement 
Manager highlighted that there are outstanding queries for the Valuer, who is 
on leave until September. It was confirmed that there are no issues to date 

that need to be raised with Committee Members.   
 

The Engagement Manager highlighted areas where there are outstanding queries 

and internal processes need to be completed in order to finalise procedures – 
Grant Income, Receivables / Debtors, Financial Instruments and Council Tax were 

some of the more notable areas.  
 
Chair asked for confirmation that Grant Thornton would be providing the pension 

letter / letter of assurance and queried the delay.  The Engagement Manager 
confirmed that this is the role of a separate auditing team within Grant Thornton, he 

explained the reason for the delay and provided assurance regarding this piece of 
work.  
 

Page 5



3 
 

 
 

The Engagement Manager confirmed Grant Thornton would look to provide the 
findings of the audit at the September Committee within the Audit Findings Report; 

so long as the valuer responses and the pension letter of assurance are complete.  
 

The Engagement Manager moved onto the Value for Money section of the Update 
Report (page 15). It was explained that there had been a substantial change in the 
amount of work involved due to the introduction of the Annual Auditor Report and 

the new deadlines introduced to complete this work. However, the aim is for Grant 
Thornton to be completed for the September Committee meeting.    

 
The Chair queried the proposed cost of the value for money audit and how this 
change in process will benefit Torridge District Council.  

 
The Engagement Manager highlighted how the process worked and how the new 

report has been received positively by the Boards and Committees involved.   It 
was stated that the key benefits were the provision of more baseline /benchmarking 
data and how the report provided a snapshot of all the issues in one place.  

 
He highlighted how Economy Efficiency and Effectiveness benchmarking will be 

used to look at and challenge particular areas in terms of processes, and this would 
be used to provide recommendations for improvement going forward.  
 

Chair asked for clarification that the letter, when received, would cover what drives 
costs, benchmarking and recommendations for improvement and the Engagement 

Manager confirmed this was correct.  
 
The Engagement Manager highlighted the Audit Scope Letter and referred 

members to page 207. He clarified that the scope letter updates the audit plan in 
relation to the audit fee and provided members with a summary.  

 
The Engagement Manager referred members back to the Update Report and 
mentioned the sector update on page 18 and page 20, which highlights some of the 

lessons learned and public interest reports.  
 

The Chair asked members if there were any questions and asked the Engagement 
Manager how the audit is comparing to last year in relation to their requests for 
information and whether they felt they were requesting more information from the 

Finance Team.  
 

The Engagement Manager stated he felt that, on a balance, requests were largely 
the same. It was possible there was an overall increase in requests, but this was to 
maintain best practice. 

 
The Committee Members duly noted agenda items 80, 86 and 87.  
 

 
81.    AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE  

 

The Chair welcomed Paul Middlemass from Devon Audit Partnership, who provided 

Committee Members with a summary of the 5 internal audits completed since the 

Page 6



4 
 

 
 

last Committee met and directed members to Appendix A, which provided a 
summary. 

 
The opinion of the audits on Safeguarding and Housing Benefits & Council Tax 

Support 2020-21 were ‘substantial assurance’. The opinion of the audits on 
Equality & Diversity, Risk Management and Car Parking were ‘reasonable 
assurance’.   

 
In relation to Safeguarding it was confirmed that controls were effective, but there 

were agreed recommendations in relation to the Section 11Audit and the 
safeguarding policy.  
 

In relation to Equality and Diversity overall there were effective arrangements in 
place to promote equality and diversity. It was felt more could be done in relation to 

increasing workforce diversity and Devon Audit Partnership noted more complete 
information on iTrent would support this. The importance of the annual equality and 
diversity report and equality and diversity training for officers and members were 

also highlighted.  
 

In relation to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support there is a strong control 
framework in place, this is despite a significant increase in work and subsequent 
demands on the team due to the pandemic. One impact has been increased time to 

process claims, but it was felt that quality checks have been maintained and 
collection rates are reasonable.    

 
In relation to Risk Management Devon Audit Partnership were broadly content with 
the risk management framework, it was felt there needed to be more conscious 

review by the Risk Management Group, as well as more consideration of 
operational risk.  

 
In relation to Car Parking it was identified there was a need for better monitoring of 
penalty charge notice collection – without this there is a risk of possible non-

collection and future write offs when notices not collected.  It was also suggested 
there should be more consideration given to risk assessment and safety of parking 

staff going about their duties. 
 
The Chair asked if there were any questions and Committee Members duly noted 

the report. 
 

82.    ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT  
 

Rob Hutchins Devon Audit Partnership Manger introduced himself and provided 

members with a summary of the Annual Internal Audit Report 2020-21.   
 

The Devon Audit Partnership Manager mentioned the impact of the pandemic on 
the work of Torridge District Council and the partnership.  He highlighted the 
assurance statement on page 40 of the report, which provides a ‘reasonable 

assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 
framework’.   

 

Page 7



5 
 

 
 

Committee Members were provided with information on internal audits that were 
covered throughout the year, along with the opinion outcome – no outcomes were 

‘limited assurance’ or ‘no assurance’.  The Devon Partnership Manager also 
highlighted the work that had been deferred as a result of the pandemic, so that 

front-line staff could concentrate on service delivery.   
 
The Chair queried what delay there would be for these deferred audits and whether 

there was capacity for the work to be completed.  The Devon Audit Partnership 
Manager explained the decision-making process regarding internal audits and how 

this is a risk-based response, he explained these areas of work would be 
considered in relation to this risk-based approach, along with the involvement of 
management.    

 
Committee Members were directed to page 44 of the report regarding fraud 

prevention and detection.  The Devon Partnership Manager confirmed that 
nationally they have seen an increase in levels of fraud, particularly in relation to 
the pandemic. However, there continue to be minimal levels of fraud within the 

council due, in part, to the diligence of the officers running the system.  
 

The Devon Audit Partnership Manager highlighted Appendix 3 – Comparison of 
Audit Opinions on page 50 of the report.  This table provided opinion on the number 
of controls looked at in each audit and the level of assurance given for each of 

these.  
 

The Chair asked about the Covid-19 grant assurance.  A Reasonable Assurance 
was provided in the table under risk opinion and the overall opinion was Substantial 
Assurance.  The Devon Audit Partnership Manager confirmed that this was due to a 

change in the assurance opinion and should read as substantial.   
 

The Chair asked if there were any questions and Committee Members duly noted 
the report 
 

83.    DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  
 

The Service Improvement Officer presented the Annual Governance Statement 
report to Committee Members and explained that the statement is shared with this 
committee before being published alongside the financial statements.  

 
New guidance around the production of the Governance Statement was highlighted 

and the Service Improvement Officer explained the impact of these 
recommendations on the format, layout and content of this year’s report.  
 

The Service Improvement Officer highlighted the governance framework on page 
60 of the report, which provides members with an overview of the governance 

arrangements for Torridge District Council.   
 
Committee Members were then provided with a summary of the report and the 

Service Improvement Officer highlighted the Action Plan on page 71, which 
identifies weakness that need to be addressed:  

 

Page 8



6 
 

 
 

 Asset Management Plan 

 Leisure contract  

 Payment of Covid Grants and recovery action. 
 

 
The Chair asked if there were any questions and Committee Members duly noted 

the report. 
 

84.    WAIVERS AND NON-COMPLIANCE WITH PROCEDURE RULES  
 

Chair introduced the Section 151 Officer, who presented the report on non-

compliance with procedure rules and waivers that had been approved.   
 
Members were provided with detail regarding the number of waivers passed and 

the reason they were agreed, all were confirmed to be directly related to Covid and 
in response to the Pandemic.   

 
The Section 151 Officer also highlighted the number of waivers agreed were the 
lowest in 10 years.   

 
There were no questions and Committee Members duly noted the report.  

 
85.    PRESENTATION OF THE DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENT.  

 

The Section 151 Officer talked through a summary presentation with Committee 
Members, which provided an explanation of the final accounts for 2020-21 and the 

auditing process. The Section 151 Officer provided Committee Members with an 
overview of the 4 key statements of accounts:  
 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

 Movement in Reserves Statement 

 Balance Sheet 

 Cashflow Statement 

 
Committee Members were then provided with some detail on what each of the 4 
statements of accounts covered in financial terms.  It was confirmed that cashflow 

has increased this financial year and the Section 151 Officer explained what this 
meant in real terms for Torridge District Council.   

 
Members asked the Section 151 Officer if there was any risk that the money set 
aside by Torridge would be claimed back by the Government at a later date. It was 

confirmed this would not happen because the money provided by the Government 
and set aside by Torridge was not ring-fenced.  

 
The Chair asked whether the Section 151 Officer felt that Torridge District Council 
were in a good position, given the impact of the Pandemic. The Section 151 Officer 

confirmed that this would be picked up within agenda item 17 on Corporate Risk.   
 

Committee Members duly noted the report.  
 

Page 9



7 
 

 
 

86.    DRAFT AUDIT FINDINGS  
 

This item was covered by Grant Thornton under item 80 of the meeting, with 
agreement of the Chair. 

 
87.    EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES  

 

This item was covered by Grant Thornton under item 80 of the meeting, with 
agreement of the Chair. 

 
88.    FORWARD PLAN  

 

The Forward Plan was discussed with Committee Members and it was confirmed 
that the next meeting of the Committee in September will be focused on signing off 

the accounts for 2020-21.  
 
The Section 151 Officer highlighted an outstanding item in relation to exploring the 

effectiveness of the Audit and Governance Committee. The Devon Audit 
Partnership Manager was asked for advice, and it was confirmed there is 

recommended good practice and Devon Audit Partnership could explore this with 
the Committee at a future meeting. 
 

Committee Members agreed the forward plan.  
 

 
89.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 

The Chair moved: 
 

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 
10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Craigie and 

 
Resolved:  
 

That the meeting move to Part II.  
 

(Vote: Yes – Unanimous)  
 

90.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  
 

91.    CORPORATE RISK  
 

The Section 151 Officer provided an update on the Corporate Risk Register and 
ran through the identified emerging risks with Committee Members. 

  
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Hepple and 

 

Page 10



8 
 

 
 

Resolved: 
To come out of Part II and close the meeting.  

 
(Vote: For - unanimous.) 

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 2.17 pm and closed at 3.35 pm 
 

 
Chair:  Date:  
 

 

Page 11



Audit & Governance Committee 

Actions from meeting on 27th July 2021 

 

Minute 

Number 

Action raised by Action Responsible for 

Action 

Contacted Completed 

 
 

 

 No actions from meeting    

 
 

 
 

     

 

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 3



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

1 
 

  

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date 

Date: September 2021   

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide a summary of the audit reports 
issued since the last audit committee to enable members to discuss any 
matters they wish to raise. 
  

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The Audit & Governance Committee have requested a regular summary of audit reports issued. 
This is to provide an opportunity for discussion and to raise queries related to the reports.  

 
As members receive a full copy of the audit report upon release, they are encouraged to raise 
any significant concerns they may have with the Auditor at that time. This summary report gives 
an added opportunity for Members as a group to discuss related matters. 

 
This report includes all final audit reports issued to date that have not been previously reported 
to the Committee.  

 
2. REPORT 

A summary of final reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A.  

 
There are three audit reports to note: 
 

 Debt management 

 Cemeteries 

 Home Working Security and Capacity 

 

  
  

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None. 
 

Financial Implications 
None. 
 

Human Resources Implications 
None. 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None. 
 

Equality/Diversity 
None. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

2 
 

 
 
Risk Management 

The Risk Based Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide robust coverage of the key risks faced by 
the Council each year. It is developed in consultation with management and approved by members. 
 
Each internal audit report provides the following key information: 
Assurance level – providing an overall opinion on the audit area. 
Acton plan – including audit recommendations (where applicable) and management responses. 
 
Reported issues are assigned a priority rating of high, medium, or low, based on the perceived 
impact and likelihood as established within the corporate risk matrix. 
 
The report may also include ‘opportunity’ findings, which are suggested courses of action perceived 
to add value and included for consideration. 
 
Low priority or housekeeping matters are reported separately to operational management during 
the draft audit stage. 
 
Reporting of progress to the Audit & Governance Committee to implement internal audit actions is 
the responsibility of the Finance Director / S151. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the Audit Committee terms of reference and the Audit Procedures 
Manual.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”    

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 

The following is a summary of the four assurance levels currently used, along with the audits that 
have been awarded each level: 
 
Opinion Audit 

Substantial Assurance 
‘A sound system of Governance’ 

NA 

Reasonable Assurance  
‘Some scope for improvement’ 

Debt Management 

Limited Assurance 
‘Improvement is required’ 

Cemeteries; Home Working 
Security and Capacity 

No Assurance 
‘Immediate action required’ 

NA 

 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Committee are asked to: 
 

Note the reports issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or proposals 
relating to the internal audits in this report. 

 
 
 

Page 14



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

3 
 

 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations:  

 
Steve Hearse, Chief Executive Officer 
Staci Dorey, Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Audit and Governance Committee Chair 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

David Heyes, Finance Manager & S151 Officer 
Robert Hutchins – Head of Devon Audit Partnership 
Paul Middlemass – DAP Audit Manager 

  
Background Papers: 

 
Audit files 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 15



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

4 
 

Appendix A 

 
Overview of Reports Issued but not previously reported to Committee 

 

Debtors 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – 4 (1 Medium, 3 Low) 
 
No of recommendations agreed - 4 
 
Summary 

Each service area is responsible for raising its own debtor invoices and has nominated staff with the 
necessary system access to allow them to do so. This system works reasonably well but there is 
increased risk of quality issues, particularly in-service areas where invoicing is carried out infrequently 
and where officers may be less familiar with best practice. 

In response to COVID-19, and the financial hardships faced by its customers, recovery actions were 
suspended during the first half of the 2020-21 financial year. The Income and Recovery Officer was 
assigned alternative duties assisting other teams within the Council. Recovery actions were 
reintroduced in the second half of the year as easing of the first lockdown period came into effect. 
Some periodic processes remain affected by the COVID-19 response, in particular those involving the 
NDR & Income Team Leader, who has been heavily involved in processing business grants. One area 
affected, is in the monitoring of aged debt. For aged debts of more than one-year, standard practice 
would normally have seen the Team Leader reviewing and monitoring reports to maintain an 
awareness of these longer-term debts. Work like this is due to be reintroduced in the coming weeks as 
the grant processing burden is reduced. 

SPAR.net data to the end of April 2021 showed that: 

The debt over 1 year old stood at £141k, up from £138k as at the same period last year. 
The debt over 2 years old stood at £106k, up from £80k as at the same period last year. 

In previous audits we noted that the current system does not provide detail on the amount of debt 
collected in year, but only a consolidated report based on debt recovered since 2005. The current 
report states that the multi-year (i.e. since 2005) collection rate stands at 99%. The result is that it was 
not possible at the time of our audit to directly assess whether debt collection was significantly 
impacted over the last year. Based on the diversion of team resources to support C-19 grant work, 
and the relaxed debt collection rules over the last year, debt recovery is likely to have reduced. This 
would accord with that reported by other councils. For instance, a 5% reduction in debt collection 
would have an impact of approximately £180k. Given the absence of in year debt collection 
information, the council is not able to quantify the level of impact and to consider the extent of any 
corrective action needed. 
 
Our sample check of write offs show that they were undertaken as per delegated authorities. Access 
to the Debtor system was also appropriately controlled.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

5 
 

 
 

Cemeteries 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Limited 
 
No of recommendations – 8 (6 Medium, 2 Low) 
 
No of recommendations agreed – 8 
 
Summary    

Management and reporting lines exist to oversee the operation of the cemeteries. The Head of 
Communities and Place has overall responsibility, with day-to-day management delegated to a 
recently appointed Property Manager, who is starting soon. Day to day administration of cemeteries 
services is the responsibility of reception staff at Caddsdown. This has been the case for several years 
meaning they have a good working knowledge of systems and processes. However, there are no 
performance indicators relating to this area, although budget monitoring is undertaken. We note the 
reduction in Cemetery Fee income from £70k in 2019-20, to £55k in 2020-21, due to C-19 lockdown 
restrictions preventing burial services.  

Master plans for the cemeteries are maintained and are drawn up initially using AutoCAD software. 
The service currently has no one trained to use this software and there are also questions around 
whether the Council holds a current software licence. As a result, the current digital plans are not 
actively maintained, and the service is reliant on printed copies of the plans which are annotated 
manually with any changes. The council now intends to recruit someone with experience of CAD.  

Cemetery Pro is used to hold burial information (it is a legal requirement to hold this) and the related 
financial charges. No information was available on the data backup arrangements within the Cemetery 
Pro system. As a hosted system, the Council should ensure that backup arrangements are included 
within any contractual requirements, and this is something that should be verified. This is now being 
investigated. 

Grounds maintenance within the cemeteries is also an area of weakness. The current contractor, ISS, 
are understood to have significant resourcing issues and are unable to deliver on their contractual 
requirements. Frequent complaints are received regarding failure to maintain cemeteries in a clean 
and tidy fashion. The council for their part is looking to end the contract in April 2022, and to bring the 
activity in house. For the draft audit report, we included as a ‘High’ priority recommendation to address 
this weakness, this was reduced to ‘Medium’ in the final report due to some mitigating controls which 
have been outlined by the Service Manager, including monthly meetings with the contractor.  
 
Homeworking Security and Capacity 

 
Overall Assurance Level – Limited 
 
No of recommendations – 11 (3 High, 6 Medium, 2 Low) 
 
No of recommendations agreed - 11 
 
Summary 

Mobile technology has become more vital to council operations than ever before with an increasing 
amount of sensitive data accessible on laptops, tablets and smartphones. Greater levels of flexible 
working and the wide-ranging choice of devices increases the likelihood of cyber-attacks. Mobile 
devices often leave the relative safety of offices and homes, and therefore require a higher level of 
protection than a Council-based desktop or thin client equipment. 
 

Page 17



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

6 
 

 
That said, successful deployment of remote and mobile working technologies underpins realisation of 
efficiency savings from rationalisation of the Council's property estate, collaborative working with 
partner organisations and minimising 'return to base' travel in to access systems and deliver services 
efficiently. COVID-19 has demonstrated that the flexibility of remote and mobile working solutions is a 
powerful mitigation in business continuity scenarios. 
 
Our Limited Assurance evaluation is based on assessment of the core controls described in the 
National Cyber Security Centre's 'Cyber Essentials' and '10 Steps' guidance. As part of our work, we 
identified strengths (see those listed in the Executive Summary), such as the emphasis on Strong 
Passwords, encryption on mobile devices, access to IT support for remote users, and use of 
monitoring tools. However, we also identified weaknesses that need to be addressed to reduce the 
residual risk. The recommendations in Appendix B (action plan) of the report reflect the range of 
cybersecurity and operational ICT areas in the audit scope.  
. 
The top priority actions to be addressed relate to: 

 The absence of a Patch Management Policy to ensure software patches are consistently 
applied. 

 Periodic updates to mobile devices to ensure that they have the latest software. 

 Asset management, including the upkeep of an asset inventory, mobile device wiping and 
creation of an IT Disposal Policy. 

 User account management, review of user access and reducing the potential for stolen 
credentials to be exploited. 

 Multi-Factor Authentication, password expiry and password blacklisting to be introduced. 

Page 18



 
  

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Effectiveness of the Audit Committee 

Date: 5th  October 2021 Reference:  

 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To consider the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) self-assessment checklist for Audit Committees.   
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

It is acknowledged best practice for audit committees of local authorities to comply with 
the guidance provided by CIPFA. In accordance with this Members approved the 
adoption of the statement of purpose, core functions and terms of reference for the Audit 
& Governance Committee and these are set out in the Council‟s Constitution. There are 
diverse aspects to the role of Members appointed to an audit committee and CIPFA 
provide a useful self-assessment checklist that can be used periodically to monitor the 
effectiveness of an Audit Committee. It is timely to consider progress and identify any 
further improvements that can be taken forward. 

 
 In March 2018 CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy) issued 

updated guidance on the function and operation of audit committees, including an 
updated “self-assessment of good practice”. Appendix A provides a self-assessment 
checklist for audit committees to compare themselves to CIPFA “Good Practice”. 

  
2. REPORT 

The self-assessment checklist has initially been completed as far as possible by the S151 
Officer and the DAP Partnership Manager and is attached for consideration and update by 
the Committee. 
 
As members will see, the self-assessment, by and large, provides positive confirmation that 
the Audit & Governance Committee meets expected standards and best practice.  Question 
20 asks “are meetings effective with a good level of discussion and engagement from all the 
members?”.  Overall, meetings are considered to be effective, and members are engaged 
and ask relevant and appropriate questions of officers to further inform the assurance that 
they are being provided, however, in recent meetings, questions have predominantly been 
asked by the Chair, with lesser contribution from other members – this may be an area that 
requires discussion and attention.   
 
During the period March 2020 to June 2021, meetings were held “virtually” using Zoom. We 
are now moving towards a “hybrid” approach, where members attend “in person” but some 
officers, and groups such as External and Internal Audit continue to attend remotely.  It 
would be good to seek members views on how they are finding this way of working. 
Does the technology enable a “good” meeting? 

 
 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None. 
 
Financial Implications 
None. 
 
Human Resources Implications 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



 
  

None. 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None. 
 
 
Equality/Diversity 
None. 
 
Risk Management 
If the Audit & Governance Committee is ineffective or perceived to be ineffective then the 
Council may receive no assurance on whether its governance arrangements, risk 
management and control environment are operating adequately. This would lead to censure 
by the external auditors and any allegations of mismanagement and poor control could not be 
defended. This review provides an opportunity for the Committee to consider how effective it 
is and to address any improvements. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
Compliance with CIPFA guidance follows best practice. 
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Chair of A&G, Councillor Philip Hackett has said “Maintaining an effective Audit Committee is 
vital and periodically assessing our performance is an essential part of achieving this."  

 

   
4. CONCLUSIONS 

The Checklist should be completed to show the Committee‟s achievements so far against 
the CIPFA requirements and to identify any improvements or amendments that could be 
taken forward.  

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is for Members to acknowledge their performance in their role as the Audit Committee 
against the CIPFA checklist and to decide in which areas they have evidence of their 
effectiveness and which areas they suggest could be developed further – for example in 
asking probing questions. 
 
Members consider the use of “hybrid” meetings since July 2021 onwards, and provide their 
views on how they are finding this way of working.  Does the technology enable a “good” 
meeting to take place? 

 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations:  

 
Steve Hearse, Chief Executive Officer 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of A&G Committee 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

David Heyes – S151 Officer 
Robert Hutchins, DAP Partnership Manager 
 

 Background Papers: 
 

CIPFA - Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for 
Local Authorities and Police (2018 Edition) 
 

 
 

Page 20



 
  

APPENDIX A CIPFA Self-Assessment Checklist – 
Measuring the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee  

Review by A&G Committee - October 2021 
 

 
 Audit committee purpose and governance Y P N Comments / evidence / actions required 

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee? 
Y  

 Audit and Governance (A&G) Committee established 2010 and meets 
regularly 

2 Does the audit committee report directly to full council? 
Y  

 Committee can decide to escalate issues to Full Council 
Chair/officer reports taken to Full Council as and when required 

3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the 
committee in accordance with CIPFA‟s Position Statement? Y  

 Constitution, Part 3 - Responsibility for functions, (Scheme of 
delegation). 

4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and 
accepted across the authority? Y  

 Documented in the constitution. 
Reporting of minutes to Full Council 

Regular “Newsletter” produced and distributed to all Members  

5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in 
meeting the requirements of good governance? 

Y  

 The Audit Committee helps to set the “tone from the top” in particular in 
relation to its zero-tolerance stance against fraud and corruption. 

External Audit (Grant Thornton) provide reports on their work, which are 
concluded in the Annual Audit & Inspection Letter. 
Other agency‟s reports are considered and actioned upon as part of the 

review for the Annual Governance Statement. 

6 Are the arrangements to hold the committee to account for its 
performance operating satisfactory? 

Y  

 The minutes of A&G show what has been discussed and agreed (e.g. 
risk management strategies; internal control statements; anti-fraud 
arrangements; whistle-blowing strategies). 

 
Ref 

Functions of the committee Y P N Comments / evidence / actions required 

7 Do the committee‟s terms of reference explicitly address all the 
core areas identified in the CIPFA Position Statement? 

 Good governance 

 Assurance framework including partnerships and 
collaboration arrangements 

 Internal audit 

 External audit 

 Financial reporting 

 Risk management 

 Value for money or best value 

 Counter-fraud and corruption. 

 supporting the ethical framework 

Y  

 Constitution, Part 3 - Responsibility for functions, (Scheme of 
delegation). 
 

The Council‟s Scrutiny Committees review partnership and collaboration 
arrangements. In addition, the North Devon Crematorium is audited by 
the Internal Audit provider for North Devon Council and internal audits of 

other collaborative arrangements are reported to A&G as appropriate. 
 
Codes of Conduct in place for Members and Officers and a Register of 

Member Interests published.  
 
The A&G Committee periodically review and aim to improve the Anti-

Fraud Corruption and Bribery Policy and Whistleblowing Policy.  

P
age 21



 
  

The Internal Audit planning process will consider issues such as Ethics 
and Values and such areas will be audited dependant upon the relative 
risk rating (Ethics and Values most recently in December 2016) 

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the 
committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and that adequate 
consideration has been given to all core areas? 

Y  

 An annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Committee is 
completed. 
External Audit – appointed via Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) 

and External Auditor (Grant Thornton (GT)) must meet the standards set 
of it by PSAA. 
Internal Audit – must comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS). Our internal audit provider (Devon Audit Partnership 
(DAP) was subject of external review, carried out in, December 2016 
which confirmed compliance with standards. (Next review due 

November 2021). 

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified 
in CIPFA‟s position statement and whether it would be 
appropriate for the committee to undertake them? 

Y  

 The Chief Executive Officer, Section 151 Officer or Monitoring Officer 
would refer any relevant matters (e.g. from other Committees) to A&G 
for consideration.  

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, 
are plans in place to address this? Y  

 Coverage is considered appropriate, but if this were to be the case then 
such plans would be prepared. 

11 Has the committee maintained its non-advisory role by not 
taking on any decision-making powers that are not in line with 

its core purpose? Y  

 The Committee is not a decision-making body 
For example, C&R Committee and Full Council receive reports on 

Treasury Management and it would be duplication for A&G to consider 
this.  
 

Ref 
Membership and support Y P N Comments / evidence / actions required 

12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of 

the committee been selected? 
This should include: 

 Separation from the executive 

 An appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the 
membership 

 A size of commitment is not unwieldy 

 consideration has been given to the inclusion of at 

least one independent member (where it is not already 
a mandatory requirement) 

Y  

  The constitution specifies 7 members (6 councillors and 1 

independent); quorum of 4 

 Some Members also sit on C&R Committee.  

 Any decisions which pose a conflict would be declared.  

 The Committee has a position for an Independent Member, but this 

post is currently vacant. 
 
The Redmond Review has recommended that all audit committees have 

at least one independent member – this is not yet statute. 
 

13 Have independent members appointed to the committee been 
recruited in an open and transparent way and approved by the 

full council as appropriate for the organisation? 
  

 Previously, the Independent position was formally advertised and „best‟ 
candidate selected 

P
age 22



 
  

14 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge 
and skills? 

Y  

 Chair has received training in „chairing skills‟. 
 
Various training provided, most recently training provided by DAP and 

Grant Thornton at Buckfast Abbey October 2019. Covid has had an 
impact on such sessions, but we are hopefully that these will be re-
commenced soon. 

 

15 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with 
briefings and training? 

Y  

  Briefings included on agenda as required 

 Members invited on training/briefing sessions as they arise.  

 Members invited to and attended training session delivered by DAP & 
GT 

 Training on Financial Statements and the Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS) process is provided each year as necessary.  

 Joint training with NDC was provided in June 2019 covering the role of 
the Committee, Financial Statements, Governance and Risk 

Management. 

 Survey undertaken in October 2019 to identify training needs. 
However, it should be noted that the response to the survey was 

limited. 
 

16 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against 
the core knowledge and skills framework and found to be 

satisfactory? Y  

 Induction carried out in May/June 2019 for the newly appointed 
committee members.  

 
Other training requirements identified through this self-assessment 
process.  

17 Does the committee have good working relationships with key 

people and organisations, including external audit, internal 
audit and the chief financial officer? 

Y  

 The A&G minutes show this to be the case 

18 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the 

committee provided? 
Y  

 Democratic Services draw up the agenda, circulate committee papers, 

and prepare/publish minutes 
Service Improvement Officer meets with the Chair to discuss 
forthcoming agenda items 

19 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from 

those interacting with the committee or relying on its work? 
Y  

 A stakeholder survey was carried out in summer 2016. There was a low 

response rate, but the responses received indicated a high level of 
satisfaction with the Committee‟s performance. 
 

 

20 Are meetings effective with a good level of discussion and 
engagement from all the members? 

Y  

 Meetings are considered to be effective. Members are engaged and ask 
relevant and appropriate questions of officers to further inform the 
assurance that they are being provided. In recent meetings, questions 

have predominantly been asked by the Chair, with lesser contribution 
from other members – this may be an area that requires discussion and 

P
age 23



 
  

attention 
During the period March 2020 to June 2021, meetings were held 
“virtually” using Zoom. We are now moving towards a “hybrid” approach, 

where members attend “in person” but some officers will continue to 
attend remotely.  It would be good to seek members views on how they 
are finding this way of working. Does the technology enable a “good” 

meeting? 

21 Does the committee engage with a wide range of leaders and 
managers, including discussion of audit findings, risks and 
action plans with the responsible officers? 

Y  

 Re engaging with leaders and managers, a recent example has been 
the A&G committees‟ interest in ensuring that all Council members to be 
aware of General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR). In February 

2020 the committee were informed that that 59% of councillors had 
carried out the training and requested that the Strategic Manager 
(Resources) draft an email to councillors reminding them of the need for 

training and safeguarding training dates.  
 

22 Does the committee make recommendations for the 
improvement of governance, risk and control and are these 

acted on? 

Y  

 The A&G committee plays an active role in the improvement of 
governance, risk and control. 

Members challenge officers to ensure that risks are understood and that 
mitigating controls are achieving the desired effect. 
 

For example, Members have previously queried the action proposed by 
management regarding safeguarding.  Officers provided the background 
to this action and the struggle to gain representation of both Board 

Members at meetings with the Devon-wide safeguarding group.    
  
Members raised concern at the situation and the impact on information 

sharing protocols.  It was felt there was a need for very strong 
representation to Devon County Council regarding this. 
 

 

23 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding 
value to the organisation? 

  

N A consultation with all Members was carried out in 2016 but there was a 
limited response and it was agreed that the Chair would provide updates 
to Full Council.  

Please see action 25 below. 

24 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas 
of weakness? 

Y  

 The Committee undertakes an annual self assessment against the 
CIPFA expected standards. 
Where actions are identified, then an action plan will be prepared. 

On a regular basis the Committee will consider its needs make 
improvements as required. For example, a training need may be 
required, and training from officers will be requested. 

P
age 24



 
  

25 Does the committee publish an annual report to account for its 
performance and explain its work? 

Y  

 An annual report on the operations of the Audit Committee was taken to 
Full council in September 2018. 
An annual report for year ending 31/09/2020 was prepared for the Chair 

of the Audit & Governance Committee. 
 

 
 

P
age 25



Audit  
Agreed 

Actions 
Open Late Complete

Income Processing 2020/21 3 0 2 1

Housing Renewals 2020/21 10 6 2 1

Creditors 2020/21 2 1 1 0

NNDR 2020/21 8 1 0 7

Main Accounting System 2020/21 0 0 0 0

Safeguarding 2021/22 5 3 1 1

Housing Benenfits 2020/21 0 0 0 0

Equality & Diversity 2021/22 3 3 0 0

Risk Management 2021 9 2 0 7

Car Parking 2021/22 9 3 1 5

Cemeteries 2021/22 8 7 0 1

Debtors 2021/22 5 1 2 2

Totals 62 27 9 25

44% 15% 42%

Audit Reports Published in 2021

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



Department Area Agreed Action Officer Target Date Status Comments for Late Actions
High / Medium / 

Low / Oppurtunity

ICT

3DS2 Security Compliance
Capita will be updating the infrastructure, with input from TDC 

IT.
Steve Burgess Jun-21 Late

The Council is in the process of bringing in 3DS2 security as 

part of an upgrade. The Council is waiting on Capita to resolve 

the latest API so that it can swap the Granicus Forms system 

over to the new system.  The actual BACS deadline 

determining this requirement has been moved back into 2022

Medium

ICT

Paye.net User Declarations
The central record of declarations will be expanded to include 

all paye.net users responsible for accepting card payments.
Steve Burgess May-21 Late

As part of the new Capaita v1.3 upgrade users will be required 

to sign a new declaration to go onto the new system. The new 

ugrade goes live in November 2021

Medium

Housing Renewals

Happy Energy Partner Solutions - retaining 

evidence of orginal claim / declaration is 

shared (backed-up area)

We will ensure that suitable supporting evidence is retained in 

all instances going forward.
Janet Williams Jan-21 Late Update not available as the time of writing this report medium

Housing Renewals

Partner companies - Supporting 

documentation of how contractors are 

selected should be held and available

We will ensure that suitable supporting evidence is retained in 

all instances going forward.
Janet Williams Jan-21 Late Update not available as the time of writing this report medium

The procurement officer will review P Cards with no 

transactions for over 6 months and question the appropriate 

officers as whether they should be cancelled.

The high usage of P Cards is primarily due to the Council not 

having a Fuel store for its refuse and street cleansing vehicle 

fleet.

Discussion with other Devon Authorities will continue, 

however it was agreed the responsibility for publishing the S11 

Annual Statement sits with TDC.

Safeguarding

It was agreed that the findings and overall opinion in this 

report provide sufficient assurance for a S11 Statement to be 

written this year. The Statement will be published on the 

website.

From 2021/22, following the introduction of the new 

procedure in 3.2, the S11 Annual Assurance Statement will be 

incorporated into the Annual Governance Statement.

Car Parking Business Plan

An Integrated Business Plan for parking services and covering 

the year 2021-22 was not, as at the time of testing, in place. A 

meeting is scheduled between the Head of Communities and 

Place and the Major Projects and Estates Manager, to discuss 

the way forward.

Tom Phillips Jul-21 Late

This is not the highest priority within the Estate team, however 

a tour of the car parkign estate is scheduled for November 

once the toursit season has passed.  Which will feed into a Car 

Parking strategy which it is aimed to be completed by 

December 2021. The strategy will covers areas such as Electric 

Charging points,ticketing systems, signage etc.

Medium

Debtor invoices to be fully detailed, considering the issues 

raised.

Debtors

Reminder to be circulated via the staff newsletter, regarding 

the need for fully detailed VAT invoices.

Debtors Recovery process
We will ensure that case notes are updated from time to 

time as evidence that they are being actively monitored 

and pursued

Karina Baird Aug-21 Late
Debtors manager currently off sick, am unable to obtained 

updated timeline
low

The updated report is currently being revised and will be 

completed by 31st Ocotber 2021

This is a substantial piece of work, which is not a high priorty. 

It is now planned that customer service staff (rathar than the 

procurement officer) will be engaged to process this peice of 

work. Opportunity

Debtors manager currently off sick, am unable to obtained 

updated timeline
low

medium

Creditors

Debtors Invoices Karina Baird Aug-21 Late

Purchase Cards Luan Stapely May-21 Late

Section 11 Audit Staci Dorey May-21 Late

P
age 27



 
  

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer 

To: Audit & Governance 

Subject: Assessment of Going Concern Status 

Date: 5th October 2021 Reference:  

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  

To consider the report of the Finance Manager and S151 Officers‟ assessment of the Council as a 
“going concern” in light of the closure of the Statement of Accounts for 2020/21.   
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
The concept of a „going concern‟ assumes that an authority, its functions and services will 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. This assumption underpins the 
accounts drawn up under the Local Authority Code of Accounting Practice. It is made 
because local authorities carry out functions essential to the local community and are 
themselves revenue-raising bodies (with limits on their revenue raising powers set by 
central government) 

Given the significant reduction in funding for local government in recent years and the 
potential threat that COVID-19 poses to the ongoing viability of one or more councils as a 
consequence, external auditors are placing a greater emphasis on local authorities 
undertaking an assessment of the „going concern‟ basis upon which they prepare their 
financial statements. In response, this report sets out the position at Torridge District 
Council. 

 
2. REPORT 

 
All principal local authorities are required to compile its Statement of Accounts in accordance 
with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (hereafter referred to as the code).  
The code is published by the Charted Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).   
In accordance with the Code the Council‟s Statement of Accounts are prepared assuming 
that the Council will continue to operate in the foreseeable future, and that it is able to do so 
within the current and anticipated resources available. By this, it is meant that the Council 
will realise its assets and settle its obligations in the normal course of business.  
 
The main factors which underpin this assessment are:  
 

 The Council‟s current financial position;  

 The Council‟s projected financial position;  

 The Council‟s Balance Sheet;  

 The Council‟s cash flow;  

 The Council‟s governance arrangements;  

 The regulatory and control environment applicable to the Council as a local authority.  

 
Each of the above is considered in more detail below. 

  

Page 28

Agenda Item 10



 
  

 

The Council’s Current Financial Position (Revenue) 

 

The 2020/21 financial year resulted in a surplus of £771k, the allocation of the surplus to a 
leisure reserve was  approved by Community & Resources on the 9th August 2021. 

In addition to the transfer of £771k to the leisure reserve the Council was able to transfer the 
following monies to reserve. 

 

 £642k - Contribution to Capital Reserves re funding deficit on the capital program 

 £110k -  Backlog Maintenance Reserve 

 £51k -  Support for Apprentices 

 £36k -  ICT servers 

 

In total the financial performance for 2020/21 allowed the Council to set aside £1.6m to 
reserves over and above budgeted reserve transfers such as on-going contributions to the 
Vehicle Replacement Reserve, ICT replacement reserve etc. 

As at 31 March 2021 the Council held £15.5m for specific purposes including capital 
investment projects and a £1.1m uncommitted General Fund balance ****.  A review of 
financial risks and balances held in reserves is carried out during the budget process and 
when the Statement of Accounts are prepared. 

 

****  As a result of Business Rate Collection fund rules, a deficit was incurred in 2020/21 
which could not be realised until the financial year 2021/22. Consequently £3.92m of 
reserves held relate to meeting the deficit on the business rate collection fund arising in the 
financial year 2020/21. 

 

Additionally there is £0.76m in reserves which relates to Central Government Covid grants 
monies received in advance of usage. These monies will either be returned to Central 
Government or utilised during the financial year 2021/22. 

 

The Council set a 2021/22 Budget balanced at £6.956m, after releasing £105k from the 
Transition in Government Funding Reserve (resources set aside to help alleviate the impact 
of reductions in Government funding).   

However, it should be noted that the Budget 2021/22 include the following contributions to 

reserves 

Contribution to Capital Reserves   £0.460m  

Transfer to fund replacement ICT Equipment £0.080m  

Transfer to Vehicle Replacement Reserve  £0.554m 

Transfer to Apprentice Reserve   £0.125m 

Transfer to Property maintenance backlog  £0.075m 

General Contingency     £0.070m   

Other transfers to reserve    £0.054m 

. 

Page 29



 
  

The Council’s Projected Financial Position (Revenue) 
 

The Council‟s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was refreshed and reported to Full 
Council alongside the Budget 2021/22 in February 2021.  The projected net revenue spend 
of the Council is projected to increase from £6.956m *** in 2021/22 to £10.306m in 2025/26.   

Prepared using the best forecasts available at the time of reporting the overall forecast 
position through to 2025/26 shows a funding gap of £0.289m; see projected budget deficits 
for the period 2021/22 to 2025/6 below. 

The net revenue budget for 2021/22 at £6.956m is unusually low because of the release of 
£2.98m from reserve pertaining to the deficit on the Business Rate Collection fund in 
2020/21. 

 

       £‟m 

2021/22  0.000m ***  

2022/23  0.278m deficit 

2023/24  0.144m deficit 

2024/25  (0.042)m surplus 

2025/26  (0.091)m surplus 

Cumulative Total 0.289m  

*** 2021/22 budgets balanced after the release of £105k from the Transition in 

Government Funding Reserve. 

 

As at 1st April 2021 the Council holds £1.208m in its Transition in Government Funding 

Reserve which can be utilised to balance the Council‟s projected deficit whilst savings are 
identified to bridge the funding gap. 

There are major changes anticipated from Central Government with regards to local 
authority funding; namely: 

 Spending Review 2021  The Chancellor has confirmed that the 2021 
spending review will be finalised in autumn 2021. 

 Business Rates Review  Government has announced a fundamental 

review of business rates and is currently seeking evidence from local authorities 
regarding reliefs (and the abuse of reliefs) and the business rates multiplier. The 
review will also cover others aspects of business rates such as valuation 
transparency, appeals, and maintaining the accuracy of the rating list . 

 Business Rates Revaluation  The next business rate revaluation was due on 

the 1st April 2021 however, this will now take effect from the 1st April 2023 so it better 
reflects the impact of Covd-19, it will however be based on property values as at 1

st
 

April 2021. 

 New Homes Bonus   The financial year 2020/21 was intended to be 

the last year of the current New Homes Bonus scheme; however due to the impact 
of Covid-19, it has been extended for the financial year 2021/22. At the time of this 
report there is no information available as to what form any replacement of New 
Homes Bonus will take or whether there will be a further one year extension. 

The lack of information pertaining to impact of the aforementioned upon Torridge‟s finances 
represents a significant financial risk. However measures to mitigate the financial impacts 

Page 30



 
  

facing Torridge have been implemented successfully time and time again, which have 
developed a robust financial base of which Torridge can be proud. 

 

Financial Impact of Covid-19 

 
The impact of Covid-19 has been felt throughout the local authority sector, both in increased 
expenditure pressures and more particularly for district councils in lost income.  Central Government 
has recognised the financial impact of Covid-19 upon local authorities and provided additional 
funding in recognition of both the additional expenditure pressures and lost income from fees and 
charges.   
 
During the financial year 2020/21 the value of Central Government Covid support grants exceed the 
additional costs and lost income from fees and charges, which was a significant factor in allowing 
Torridge to set aside £1.6m to reserves during the financial year 2020/21. 
 

Financial uncertainty arising from Leisure 

 
The Council‟s contract with its current provider of leisure services is up for renewal on the 

31st March 2022.  Full Council has determined that the contract with the existing provider 
will not be extended, and that from the 1st April 2022 leisure services in Torridge will be 

provided by a Local Authority Trading Company (LATC). 
 
The Council‟s leisure services have been closed for significant periods of time throughout 

the pandemic. Throughout the period of closure the Council has continued to provide 
discretionary support to its leisure provider 1610 recognising that income has fallen as a 

result of the pandemic. 
 
The 2021/22 revenue budgets include an additional £150k towards support for leisure, 

however going forward it is uncertain as to what level income from the Council‟s leisure 
centres will bounce back. Consequently it is uncertain as to what level of support the 

Council will be required to provide to support the provision of leisure services going forward. 
 
The Council‟s continued support for leisure services is currently the biggest financial 

uncertainty in its revenue budgets.  
 

The Council’s Investment (Capital) Programme 

Torridge has an extensive capital program of £26.85m (excluding the recent levelling up submission 
to  Central Government funding for the Isaac Yard Development).   

A report to Full Council on the 22nd February 2021 detailed the funding gap on the Council‟s capital 
program and outlined measures to bridge the funding gap. 

Essentially the options to bridge the funding gap were: 

 Utilisation of future capital receipts 

 Savings on current capital projects 

 Increased revenue contributions to capital reserves from both 2020/21 and 2021/22 revenue 
budgets 

 Increased Car Parking charges 

 Increased Green Waste charges 

 

Page 31



 
  

Full Council on the 22
nd

 February approved the increased Car Parking and Garden Waste charges, 
the result being that the Council approved Capital program was brought back into balance. 

However during the financial year 2021/22 there has been a significant increase in construction 
inflation as the building sector has become over heated and supply chain issues within the sector 
have arisen.  

With the exception of its vehicle and ICT replacement program the majority of the Council‟s capital 
program pertains to property construction/maintenance and thus is vulnerable to the impact of 
construction inflation.  The impact of construction inflation will be assessed when setting the Council 
budget for 2022/23 and the when the MTFS is updated. 

The “property” related elements within the Council‟s capital program are circa £18m and thus a 10% 
uplift for construction inflation will add £1.8m to the cost of the Council‟s capital program. 

 

The Council’s Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 

In order to determine and reach the conclusion that the Balance Sheet is robust, specific areas of 
consideration were identified and reviewed, which were: 

 Debts owed to the Council 

 Net worth of the Council 

 Adequacy of provisions held 

 Reserves set aside – either earmarked or not and whether actually committed 

 The adequacy of the General Fund Balance to meet unforeseen expenditure. 

The Council‟s net assets amounted to £2.225m, which is significantly reduced by the inclusion of 
the pension scheme liability of £51.7m.  The Council makes annual contributions to meet this deficit 
and on-going contributions to the pension deficit have been factored into the MTFS based on recent 
experience.    

However, taking a more pragmatic approach, the real current net worth could be considered the 
total of usable reserves, which amounted to £16.9m.  Usable reserves consist of Capital Grants 
Unapplied £0.127m, Earmarked Reserves £15.7m and General Reserve £1.1m. 

  

Page 32



 
  

Pension Deficit 

The Council‟s pension deficit reflects the difference between potential future liabilities 
against the scheme: 

 Estimated payments to existing pensioners 

 Projected pension payments to current employees 

 Projected liabilities for deferred pensions (former employees not currently in 
receipt of pension) 

and the assets of the scheme: 

 Shares 

 Government bonds 

 Property 

 Cash  

 other equity investments 

The pension deficit is updated annually for changes in longevity, inflation, returns on 
investments and interest rates. 

The Council currently makes additional contributions into the pension fund towards clearing 
the underlying pension deficit over an agreed timeframe (circa 19 years) 

On a triannual basis a full actuarial review is undertaken, this review determines the level of 
employer contributions needed to be made on behalf of the Council‟s employees (from the 
1st April 2020  17.5%) and what additional contributions are required to contribute towards 
clearing the pension deficit.  

The next triannual review of Torridge‟s Pension scheme is as at 31st March 2022 which will 
cover both employer pension contributions and payments towards the underlying pension 
deficit  for the period 1st April 2023 – 31st March 2026. 

 

The Council’s Cash Flow 

The Council in accordance with recommended practice and in compliance with its Treasury 
Management Strategy maintains short, medium and longer term cash flow projections. As at 
31st March 2021 the Council held £7m in short term investments.  The entire £7m was held 
in highly liquid investments and there were no investments held for longer than a period of 
365 days.   

The balance of borrowing commitments all held with the Public Works Loan Board at the 
close of the financial year 2020/21 is £0.674m. 

As at the 31st March 2021 the Council had £10.5m held in its current bank account. 

The Council is predicting to have cash balances of circa £15m (current bank account and 
short term treasury deposits) as at the 31

st
 March 2022 and is therefore confident it can meet 

it obligations for the foreseeable future. 

  

Page 33



 
  

The Council’s Governance Arrangements 
 

The Annual Governance Statement is reviewed taking account of external and internal audit 
reviews.  Statements of assurance in the performance of internal controls and risk are 
sought from the Senior and Operational Management Team.  The effectiveness of the 
Council‟s governance arrangements are reviewed via a rolling programme of each of the 
sections of the statement, together with the evidence to support it.  This is reviewed by the 
Audit & Governance Committee.   

Whilst it is not possible to secure absolute assurance the annual review of the statement and 
the rolling programme of reviewing evidence leads me  to conclude that the existing 
arrangements are fit for purpose and provide adequate assurance of their effectiveness. 

The External Regulatory and Control Environment 

The Council is required to operate within a highly legislated and controlled environment and 
particular emphasis of this can be exampled and demonstrated with the financial controls in 
place.   

Examples of which include the requirement of Full Council to approve a balanced annual 
budget, but within that, to consider and have, regard via assurance from the s151 Officer to 
the robustness of that budget, its estimates, and the adequacy of reserves held.  The control 
environment extends thereafter to the prescriptive role that External Audit has in its auditing 
of the financial statements, the review of value for money and financial resilience and 
detailed work around subsidy claims.  

 

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None specific to this report although there is a requirement to produce the Council‟s 
Statement of Accounts giving regard to the concept of going concern. 
  
Financial Implications 
Nothing specific to this report as the report evaluates and assesses the Council‟s overall 
financial position, robustness and resilience.  
 
Human Resources Implications 
Nothing specific from this report.  
 
Sustainability Implications 
The report assesses the sustainability of the Council to continue to operate for the 
foreseeable future. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
Nothing specific from this report. 
 
Risk Management 
The report highlights a number of areas where risks have been considered and actions 
adopted to mitigate financial risk.  
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This is associated with Torridge‟s Strategic Plan and Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

  

Page 34



 
  

 
Leader Member Views 
Councillor Claire Hodson – 21st September 2021  

 
I have read the Going Concern report and discussed its content with the Section 151 Officer. 
I am satisfied with the information as presented and with the assurance given and endorse 
the report.   
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

 
The conclusion reached is that Torridge retains a robust financial position with more than 
adequate arrangements in place to be classed as a “going concern”  
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
 That members of the Committee note the outcome of the assessment made of the Council‟s 

status as a “going concern” for the purposes of compiling the Statement of Accounts 
2020/21.  
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation –21th September 2021 

Officers Consulted –  
Chief Executive 
Head of Communities 
Monitoring Officer 
 
 

 Contact Officer: David Heyes– Finance Manager & Section 151 Officer 

 Background Papers: Budget 2020/21, MTFS and Capital programme 2020/21 – 
2026/27 
Draft Statement of Accounts 2020/21 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



Torridge District

Annual Governance 
2020/2021

Statement

Council

September 2021

Page 36

Agenda Item 11

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiW6cyM4LvYAhVFBcAKHTC6DgYQjRwIBw&url=http://greatrissington.org/lorem-ipsum-dolor-sit-amet-consectetuer-adipiscing-elit-aenean-commodo-ligula-eget-dolor-aenean-massa-4/&psig=AOvVaw0O20Ko90gsdnk_TxvXBA_d&ust=1515067411301227


2

Table of Contents

Key Area Page

Executive Summary 3

Approval of the AGS 4

Identification of Key Governance Arrangements 5

Impact of COVID-19 on Governance Arrangements 8

Evaluation of the Effectiveness of Governance

- Role of Strategic Management Team 10

- Role of Members – Scrutiny 14

- Role of Members – Audit & Governance 15

- Role of Internal Audit 16

- Role of External Audit 17

Accountability and Action Plans 18

Page 37



Executive Summary

As part of our annual governance review, key officers have also been consulted for their views 

on the standards of governance within the Council – specifically:

❑ The Statutory Finance Officer, 

❑ The Monitoring Officer,

❑ The Chief Executive Officer, and 

❑ The DAP Partnership Manager. 

In delivering its services the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements 

for the governance of its affairs. We remain committed to the principles of good governance 

as identified in ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016’.

The Council has in place a comprehensive governance framework (see summary on page 7) 

and this framework provides a range of processes to continually review and challenge the 

effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements.

The information in this document confirms that in 2020/21 an adequate framework existed 

within Torridge District Council to ensure that effective internal controls were maintained. 

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in changes to the governance 

arrangements of the Council (see pages 8 & 9 for details). This included: the 

implementation of new technology to enable decision making bodies to operate; the loss of 

income streams impacting on the Council’s long term viability; an unavoidable breach of the 

Treasury Management strategy; the closure of key leisure facilities and the impact on 

contractual arrangements; pressure from the government to pay business support grants 

without the normal due diligence processes in place; preparing for elections in May 2021; 

and the general impact on service delivery to meet social distancing requirements.   

Throughout 2020/21 the Strategic Management Team ensured that wherever possible the 

Council’s governance framework operated effectively. This report sets out in detail the roles 

of Senior Management, Members, and Internal and External Auditors, in delivering effective 

governance arrangements in 2020/21.

The Statutory Finance Officer has taken account of the requirements of the CIPFA 

Financial Management Code 2020 and reached the overall conclusion that Torridge District 

Council is compliant with the principles of the Code. 

Three key issues have been identified that need to be addressed to ensure continuous 

improvement in our Governance Framework. These are set in the action plan on page 18. 

3

Page 38



4

Our overall assessment is that this Annual Governance Statement is a balanced reflection of  

our governance environment and that an adequate framework existed within Torridge District 

Council to ensure effective internal controls were maintained in 2020/21. 

Through the actions referred to on page 18, we propose over the coming year to address the 

issues that have been identified, with a view to further enhancing our governance 

arrangements. These steps will identify improvements that are needed and we will monitor 

their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed: ……………………………………. Date:  ………………….

Councillor Hackett

Chair of Audit & Governance Committee

Signed: …………………………………... Date: ………………….

David Heyes

Statutory Finance Officer 

Signed: ……………………………………. Date:  ………………….

Steve Hearse

Chief Executive Officer

Signed: …………………………………... Date: ………………….

Councillor James

Leader of the Council

Approval of the Annual Governance Statement

Page 39



The Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate 

Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and 

Society of Local Authority Chief Executive’s (SOLACE) 

Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 

Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016. This statement 

explains how Torridge has complied with the code and also how 

we meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) 

Regulations 2016, which requires all relevant bodies to prepare an 
Annual Governance Statement.

A copy of the Council’s code 

is available on our website at 

www.torridge.gov.uk/governance

or can be obtained from: 

Head of Legal & Governance

Riverbank House

Bideford

Devon

EX39 2QG

The Code of Governance sets out the principles of good  

governance and describes the arrangements the Council 

has  put in place to meet each of these principles:

Torridge District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 

accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money allocated to it is 

safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The 

Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to 

secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard 

to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 

arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, 

including arrangements for the management of risk.

5

A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the 

rule of law

B. Ensuring openness 

and comprehensive 

stakeholder engagement

C. Defining 

outcomes in terms 

of sustainable 

economic, social, 

and environmental 

benefits

E. Developing the 

entity’s capacity, 

including the 

capability of its 

leadership and the 

individuals within it

D. Determining 

the interventions 

necessary to 

optimise the 

achievement of 

the intended 

outcomes

G. Implementing 

good practices in 

transparency, reporting, and 

audit, to deliver effective 

accountability

F.  Managing risks and 

performance through 

robust internal control 

and strong public 

financial management

Identification of Key Governance Arrangements

Page 40

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12759/Corporate-Governance-at-Torridge


The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by 

which the Council directs and controls its activities, and how it leads, engages with and 

accounts to the community it serves. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of 

its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of 

appropriate, cost-effective services and outcomes. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 

manage risk to an acceptable level in accordance with our ‘risk appetite’ threshold. It cannot 

eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the Council’s aims and objectives, but it seeks to 

provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 

control is based on an on-going process designed to identify, prioritise and manage the 

risks to the achievement of the Council’s aims and objectives.

The governance framework has been in place at Torridge District Council for the 

year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual statement of 

accounts. 

The Council’s Governance Framework addresses the way the Council is controlled and 

managed, both strategically and operationally, and how it will deliver its services. The 

Framework recognises that the Council’s business is focussed upon its corporate priorities 

and seeks to facilitate delivery to our local communities of the goals set out in the Strategic 

Plan. The structures and processes, risk management and other internal control systems, 

such as standards of conduct, form part of this Framework, which is about managing the 

barriers to achieving the Council’s objectives.

The local Code of Corporate Governance is reviewed annually through the Audit and 

Governance Committee. This last happened on 26 January 2021. Members and senior 

officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of the 

Council’s affairs and the stewardship of the resources at its disposal.  This task is managed 

by the Strategic Management Team (SMT) which is comprised of the Chief Executive 

Officer, the Section 151 Officer, the Senior Solicitor/Monitoring Officer, and the Head of 

Communities and Place.

To achieve its vision/objectives the Council has designed systems and processes to 

regulate, monitor and control its activities. The Code of Corporate Governance sets out the 

controls in full.

Purpose of the Governance Framework

6

Code of Corporate Governance

Page 41



Code of Corporate Governance
(The Council’s commitment to good governance based on the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework)

Monitoring Officer
(Legal & Ethical Assurance)

Internal Audit
(Annual Audit Opinion)

S151Officer
(Promote & Deliver Good Financial 

Management)

Annual Governance Statement
(Confirms that the Council Meets Account & Audit Regulations and is published with the Annual Accounts)

Constitution

Code of Conduct

Scheme of 

Delegation

Complaints 

Process

Equality & 

Diversity

Financial 

Management 

Framework

Budget Monitoring 

Process

Compliance with 

CIPFA Guidelines

HR Policies

Pay Policy

Risk Management 

Complaints

Summary

Reports

Corporate Risk 

Register

Annual Audit 

Letters (External)

Local Government 

Ombudsman 

Report

Statement of 

Accounts

Standards 

Committee

Strategic Plan

Policies & 

Procedures

Business Planning

Business Continuity

Performance 

Results

Partnership 

Protocol

Audit & Governance 

Committee
(Challenge the draft AGS and supporting evidence. 

Approve the AGS)

Chief Executive

& Strategic Management Team
(Challenge the draft AGS and supporting evidence)

Key Components of Our Governance Framework

Financial & 

Contract 

Procedure Rules

Medium Term 

Financial Strategy

Treasury & 

Investment 

Strategy

Whistleblowing 

Policy

Personal 

Appraisals

Public

Consultations

Annual Audit 

Opinion (Int)

Quarterly Business 

Report

Scrutiny Committee

(Internal)

Manager’s

Assurance 

Statements

Scrutiny Committee

(External)

Committee Reports

Service

Risk Registers

Bribery, Anti-Fraud 

& Corruption Policy

7

Page 42



8

Impact of COVID-19 on Governance Arrangements

The COVID-19 pandemic had a significant impact on the Council’s day to day operations 

throughout 2020/21. Torridge’s Strategic Management Team worked with Lead Members to 

ensure that the majority of the Council’s services could still be delivered to its residents, whilst 

also facilitating the effective implementation of the the additional measures imposed by the 

government to minimise the impact of the pandemic on the local economy and keeping 

vulnerable members of our communities safe. This required changes to existing working 

processes and the rapid implementation of some new processes and this had a consequent 

impact on the Council’s governance arrangements. 

The Council’s main decision making bodies operate as public sessions. Such meetings were 

cancelled by the government in March 2020 and legislation was then amended to allow the 

meetings to take place remotely. Aware of the major impact on the Council’s decision making 

arrangements, Senior Officers and Lead Members held virtual meetings to agree and prioritise 

the necessary process changes. Some meetings were cancelled, including the 2020 AGM 

(Members agreed to continue the existing arrangements regarding the allocation of key 

Member roles) and Zoom technology (with appropriate training) was rolled out to all Members 

to enable decision making bodies to re-start from June 2020 onwards.

The Council was able to re-establish its full committee arrangements for the majority of 

2020/21 with a high level of public participation, and through a combination of scheduled and 

extraordinary meetings the Council's decision making arrangements remained effective. This 

is evidenced by the major staff restructure that took place during the year and the timely 

appointment of the three statutory officer posts by Full Council.   

The loss/reduction in some of the Council’s income streams, added to the additional costs 

associated with keeping communities safe and local businesses solvent, resulted in a major 

financial burden for the Council.

During 2020/21 the Statutory Finance Officer continually assessed the impact of COVID-19 on 

the Council’s long-term financial viability and provided regular updates to Members. 

Due to the large sums of money paid out to local businesses (funded by the Government) the 

Council’s Treasury Management Strategy counterparty thresholds (the maximum investment 

amount and the maximum holding with any single institution) were breached during the year. 

This was unavoidable as the Government paid the money directly to Torridge where it was held 

on account pending payment.

In line with the Treasury Management strategy these breaches were reported to Full Council.

Although no elections were held in Torridge in 2020, elections did take place on 6th May 2021. 

A great deal of work was undertaken by the Council to meet COVID-19 guidelines (e.g. 

regarding the safety of staff and voters) whilst ensuring that on polling day the elections were 

carried out in accordance with the democratic principles enshrined in UK legislation.
Page 43



9

The Leisure Contract between Torridge District Council and 1610 expires in March 2022 and 

under normal circumstances the Council would utilise the timeframe and opportunities for 

implementing the post 2022 arrangements for the district’s Leisure Services. These activities 

have been severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The issues have been exacerbated by the closure of the district’s main leisure facilities 

throughout 2020/21 and the dramatic impact this has had on the market place. 

Senior Officers have kept Full Council fully informed of the situation and Members resolved (in 

November 2020) that the Council would not enter into contractual dispute and to allow officers 

to work with 1610 to the end of the contract. An external contracted employee has been 

engaged to support the process. Senior Officers reported to Full Council in April 2021 about 

1610’s plans for reopening Torridge’s leisure centres in line with the government’s roadmap.

Minsters and Government Departments placed enormous pressure on Local Authorities to pay, 

on an agency basis, grants to local businesses to financially support them during the COVID-

19 pandemic. The grants had to be paid out in the absence of finalised government guidance 

(which was also often changing) and without the level of due diligence that officers would 

conduct in ordinary circumstances before making payments. 

It has already been identified that some grants probably would not have been paid had the 

Council had more time to manage the process in a normal controlled manner. Recovery action 

has commenced to recover sums overpaid and the Council is in contact with BEIS/MHCLG to 

establish the level of recovery action envisaged.

The social distancing requirements imposed by the Government meant that it was no longer 

possible for the Council’s officers to work in their normal environment. In March 2020 

Torridge’s IT team implemented arrangements to allow approximately 150 staff to work from 

home and gain secure access to the Council’s data and systems. This allowed many of the 

Council’s services to continue to operate as close to normal as possible.

Ten staff were furloughed between March and May 2020 and some officers were redeployed 

to keep services running and to maximise efficiency: Planning Support to assist with 

Business Rates; Democratic Services and Customer Services to assist with Waste and 

Recycling Calls and HR; Finance to assist with Parking; Parking to assist with HR; 

Environmental Health, Parking and Legal to assist with Waste and Recycling calls.

The Leisure services facilities have remained closed in 2020/21. Other services closed on a 

temporary basis or operated reduced services: Northam Burrows, Public Conveniences, 

Grounds Maintenance, DFG related works, construction projects, food inspections, and the 

Customer Service Centre.

9

Page 44



The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness 

of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of 

effectiveness is informed by:

✓ The work of the Strategic Management Team who have responsibility for the development 

and maintenance of the governance environment; 

✓ The Annual Internal Audit Assurance opinion, as provided by the Devon Audit Partnership; 

✓ Comments made by the External Auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates;

✓ The Audit & Governance Committee which reviews that the elements of the governance 

framework are in place and effective, to ensure compliance with the governance 

principles. They also reviewed the system of internal audit and concluded it was effective 

and remained a key source of assurance for the Council in 2020/21. 

The Council’s Senior Managers have completed governance assurance statements for 

each operational service within their control. Each statements verifies for 2020/21:

✓ My service is aware of and is fulfilling its statutory duties;

✓ I have accurately maintained all service performance information; 

✓ Decisions taken are with due regard for the Council’s business objectives; value for money 

and service improvement; legality; financial implications; community safety implications; 

property implications; and business risk;

✓ All officers in my service have a copy of or access to the Council’s organisational rules; 

✓ I understand my duties and obligations with regard to maintaining the health, safety and 

welfare of my staff, suppliers, partners, third parties, and have implemented and maintained 

procedures to minimise the risk of death, injury or accident;

✓ All agreed actions arising from any formal review of the service have been, or are in the 

process of being implemented;

✓ I have evaluated the effect of any significant changes that have been made to this service 

and/or its systems and assessed and addressed any new risks that have emerged;

✓ I am aware of the risks associated with the delivery of my service objectives and I have put 

mitigating actions in place to counter risks and kept these under review;

✓ I am not aware of any fraud or irregularity (proven or suspected) that I have not already 

raised with either Internal Audit or the Chief Executive;

✓ I have regularly monitored my budgets and maintained oversight of those delegated to 

members of my team. Areas of concern have been highlighted at the earliest opportunity; 

✓ All resources at my disposal are deployed in the achievement of the Council’s business 

objectives. Use of resources is kept under review, seeking continuous improvement;  

✓ For any aspects of my service delivered in partnership, roles and responsibilities are clearly 

understood. Governance and performance reporting arrangements are clearly set out and 

monitored;

✓ Strategies and policies within my service area have been reviewed as necessary.

✓ I have reviewed the ICT Security Policy and all Officers & Members have signed up to it
10

Evaluation of the Effectiveness of Governance

Role of Strategic Management Team

Page 45



Torridge’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance requirements of 

the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2015) as 

set out in Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016.

In 2020/21 the Statutory Finance Officer:

✓Ensured that the Council had in place regular reporting arrangements on its financial 

affairs. The budget for 2020/21 was agreed by Full Council in February 2020 and 

financial performance was reported on a quarterly basis to Members.

✓Updated the Contract Procedure Rules and the Financial Procedure Rules. These were 

approved by the Audit and Governance Committee and adopted by Full Council in 

February 2021 and incorporated in to the Constitution.

✓Managed the Council’s Risk Management arrangements. This included: chairing the 

Risk Management Group, maintaining the Corporate Risk Register, and reporting on 

risk management arrangements to the Audit & Governance Committee. Internal Audit 

carried out an audit of the Council’s Risk Management arrangements for 2020/21 and 

provided ‘Reasonable Assurance’ concluding that there was generally sound system of 

governance, risk management and control in place. 

✓Managed the payment of around 9,000 grants to local business support grants with an 

overall value of approximately £42M. The money was provided by the government with 

the stipulation that the monies received by the Council should be paid out to local 

businesses as quickly as possible. A combination of the government’s timescale 

requirements and changes to official guidelines meant that payments processes had to 

be implemented without the usual governance arrangements. A range of post-payment 

audit processes have subsequently been implemented and recovery actions initiated 

where appropriate. 

✓Ensured timely submission of data files to support the National Fraud Initiative as part 

of the Council’s ongoing commitment to preventing fraud and corruption.

Statutory Finance Officer

In 2020/21 the Statutory Finance Officer has taken account of the requirements of the 

CIPFA Financial Management Code 2020 and he has acknowledged the new approaches to 

Value for Money and the Council’s financial resilience. A significant amount of the Code is part 

of his team’s current activities and he has reached the overall conclusion that Torridge District 

Council is compliant with the principles of the Code. 

The Statutory Finance Officer has identified the Council’s long-term financial viability as the 

key risk area regarding future compliance with the Code and this is being assessed through a 

combination of: the budget setting process; the Medium Term Financial Strategy; regular 

reviews of the Council’s capital programme; and the provision of clear and regular financial 

updates to Members. 11

Page 46



12

The Council’s Monitoring Officer has a legal responsibility to look into matters of 

potential unlawfulness within the Council. In 2020/21 the Monitoring Officer:

✓Set up a Constitution Working Group. The Working Group reported to Full Council and 

the recommended changes to the Constitution were adopted in November 2020.

✓Reported to Full Council on the Remote Meetings Procedure Rules which were 

adopted for 2020/21.

✓Worked with the IPCO on an inspection of the Council’s RIPA arrangements 

(Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000). The inspection found there to be 

suitably strong governance processes in place within the Council to ensure compliance 

with the legislation and codes of practice.

✓Ensured that effective data protection processes remain in place across the Council: 

that officers/Members are updated on any new requirements (e.g. the Data Sharing 

Code of Practice), maintaining a breach register, and reported any information 

breaches to the Information Commissioner’s Officer (ICO).

✓Drafted a new Torridge Safeguarding Policy. This reflects the Government’s ‘Working 

Together, 2018’ document and the LGA’s ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’ framework 

(2018)'. It strengthens the current safeguarding arrangements.  

✓Arranged two meetings of the Standards Committee (the Standards Committee 

monitored standards of conduct of Members in 2020/21 and advise the Council on 

probity issues). A specific review in 2020/21 centred around the Local Government 

Ethical Standards Report and their List of Best Practice Recommendations, resulting 

in updates to the Member’s Code of Conduct.

✓Reviewed entries made in the Register of Members’ Interest.

The Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for reporting on the Council’s Governance 

arrangements and reporting any governance risks to Members. In 2020/21:

✓The Code of Governance was updated to provide assurance that standards would be met 

in key areas. The 2021 Code was approved by the A&G Committee in January 2021.

✓A supporting evidence database was maintained to provide current examples of how 

Torridge meets the governance requirements set out in the Code of Governance. The A&G 

Committee regularly review and challenge sections of the supporting evidence database. 

✓This Annual Governance Statement has been prepared to confirm the effectiveness of the 

Council’s governance arrangements. It will be challenged by the External Auditor and the 

A&G Committee and will then be signed off alongside the 2020/21 Financial Statement. 

✓The Code of Governance and AGS were published on the Council’s website.

Monitoring Officer

Page 47



In 2020/21 the Chief Executive ensured:

✓The implementation of any necessary changes to the Council’s governance 

arrangements in response to the national pandemic, to ensure that key services 

could continue to operate, vulnerable groups kept safe, and government grants to 

local business community were effectively administered (see pages 8 & 9 for details).

✓The adoption of the Council’s Strategic Plan for 2020-23. Following a series of 

Member/ Officer workshops, the draft Strategic Plan was subjected to a public 

consultation exercise. Feedback from the public consultation was reviewed and 

incorporated as appropriate. The Strategic Plan was formally adopted in Oct. 2020. 

✓That the Council’s Performance Management Framework operated effectively during 

the year. Monitoring information on key areas of performance was collated, reviewed 

and actioned. Performance management outputs were reviewed by the Strategic 

Management Team and the Overview & Scrutiny (Internal) Committee.

✓That the Council’s Performance Management Framework be reviewed so that from 

2021/22 onwards it directly reports on progress towards the achievement of the 

actions identified and agreed in the Strategic Plan. 

✓The effective management of formal complaints received by the Council. In 2020/21 

the Council received 41 stage 1 and 16 stage 2 formal customer complaints. The 

service standard is 28 days and the Council responded to 88% of complaints within 

this timeframe. In 87% of cases it was determined that the Council was not at fault –

any learning outcomes from the complaints received were fed back and incorporated 

into changes in service provision. The LGO found no fault/maladministration in any of 

the cases they resolved concerning Torridge District Council in 2020/21. 

✓That the Council’s Equality Scheme was reviewed and updated to demonstrate to 

our employees, customers, visitors, contractors and partner organisations the 

Council’s drive to continue embedding equality into everything we do, as well as 

clearly stating how we are meeting our legal obligation of the Equality Act and the 

Public Sector Equality Duty.

✓That the Strategic Management Team regularly reviewed and mitigated the major 

risks facing the Council and identified/mitigated any emerging risks.

Chief Executive Officer

In the 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement two significant issues were identified and 

included in the action plan: the impact of COVID-19 on the Council’s governance 

arrangements, and the lack of an up-to-date Asset Management Plan (AMP).

SMT have managed the impact of the pandemic on a daily basis and the impact on the 

Council’s governance arrangements in 2020/21 has been fully considered in this document. 

Due to the lack of appropriate resources, the AMP has not been updated. This action has been 

carried forward into this year’s action plan and the Chief Executive has reviewed the Council’s 

management structure and increased resources in the Property and Projects team. A new 

senior manager with responsibility for the Council’s asset portfolio is due to start in June 2021 

and one of the post’s first tasks will be to review and update the AMP. 13

Page 48



The Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee exercises its functions in respect of the

Council’s policies, decisions, performance framework and actions with an “inward

facing” emphasis.  The External Overview & Scrutiny Committee exercises its

functions in respect of the performance of partners and external public sector bodies

and Council services with an “outward facing” emphasis on the district.

Although Committee meetings were cancelled in the first quarter (as a result of the 

pandemic) the Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Committee process has provided 

challenge and has monitored the Council’s policies and performance in 2020/21. Lead 

Members have also kept issues under review during meetings with managers. There 

have been contributions, and input, from a range of stakeholders, including public and 

voluntary sector organisations, the public, officers and Members of the Council. 

Highlights have included: 

14

Role of Members – Scrutiny

Monitoring Reports from Key Partnerships and other External Bodies including:

✓ Citizens Advice P Community Safety Partnership

✓ COVID-19 - Economic & Social Impact P Devon Home Choice

✓ Encompass P Engagement with Local MP 

✓ Homelessness P 1610 (Leisure Contractor) 

✓ Petroc College/Providing Youth Employment P Play Area Open Space Strategy

✓ TTVS P Westward Housing

Officer reports on the following were reviewed and challenged during 2020/21, with 

recommendations made to C&R where required :

✓ Capital Programme P COVID-19 Homeworking & remote meetings

✓ Estuary Strategy P Ethical Investment

✓ Grounds Maintenance Contract P Income Generation T&F Group 

✓ MTFS P Quarterly Business Reports

✓ QBR T&F Group P Treasury Investment Options

Internal Overview & Scrutiny also ‘called in’ and reviewed a number of decisions 

taken by the Community & Resources Committee:

✓ The Burton - Sources and Funding Agreement

✓ The Covenant Renewal at the Hotel Site, Westward Ho!

✓ Outdoor Jet Ski Launching at Appledore

✓ Play Area Strategy – Maintenance Budget

✓ Temporary Free Car Parking Initiative

Page 49



15

The purpose of an Audit & Governance Committee is to provide assurance of the

adequacy of the risk management framework and the associated control

environment, scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance to

the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control

environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process.

Highlights of the work role the Audit & Governance Committee in 2020/21 include:

Role of Members – Audit & Governance

Monitoring Governance Arrangements

✓Considered the Internal Audit Manager’s annual report and opinion, a summary of

Internal Audit activity, and the level of assurance it provided over the Council’s

corporate governance arrangements

✓Challenged, approved, and adopted the Code of Governance for 2021 and the 

Council’s Annual Governance Statement 2019/20. They also reviewed and challenged 

the information held within the evidence database to support the Annual Governance 

Statement. 

✓Reviewed and approved updates to the Contract Procedure Rules and Financial

Procedure Rules. They also received a report on any agreed waivers to the rules 

during the previous financial year.

Approving the Council’s Annual Accounts

✓Reviewed and approved the annual statement of accounts. They also considered the

External Auditor’s report on issues arising from their audit of the accounts.

✓Considered the External Auditor’s annual letter and other specific reports.

Ensuring Effective Risk Management

✓Received regular updates from the Finance Manager on the Council’s Corporate Risk 

Register, and challenged the information held where appropriate. Reviewed and 

challenged a report from the Internal Audit Manager on the effectiveness of the Council’s 

anti-fraud and corruption arrangements.

✓Received and challenged reports of the works undertaken by Internal Audit and on 

progress on the completion of audit recommendations to mitigate any identified control 

weaknesses.

Page 50



Based on the assurance work undertaken by DAP in 2020/21, the Audit Manager has provided 

an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control framework which 

concluded that this was Reasonable.

The COVID-1919 crisis has placed considerable pressures on all local authorities, and this is 

true of Torridge. Many emergency actions taken by the Council during 2020/21 have had to be 

made quickly. As a consequence, system and control design of such decisions may not have 

been subject to the normal level of control. In their work DAP have sought to confirm that key 

controls continue to operate effectively to mitigate this risk. 

Due to the national pandemic the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) were unable to fully 

deliver the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21. During the year officer time has 

quite rightly been focused on front line service delivery and supporting the wider 

community in dealing with COVID-19. As a consequence some audits have been 

deferred to a future year. 

DAP were still able to complete the majority of their audits which was mainly achieved 

via remote working. DAP also provided some additional audit work to provide 

assurance on the COVID-19 business support grants provided by the government and 

administered by the Council. In 2021 DAP published 16 internal audit reports to 

Members of the A&G Committee:

Where weaknesses or areas for improvement have been identified management have 

generally agreed these findings and have either agreed the recommendations or 

accepted the associated risks.  Agreed management actions are monitored and DAP 

undertake follow up work to ensure identified risks are mitigated. 

Role of Internal Audit

Substantial assurance Reasonable Assurance

✓Community Grants ✓Environmental Protection

✓Ethics & Values ✓Procurement

✓VAT ✓COVID-19 Business Grants

✓Council Tax ✓NNDR

✓ Income Processing ✓Risk Management

✓Creditors

✓Main Accounting Limited Assurance

✓Safeguarding ✓Housing Renewals

✓Benefits

✓Equality & Diversity

16

Page 51



The Council’s External Auditor (Grant Thornton) are required to report on the Council’s 

financial statements and provide an opinion that they:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and the Council’s 

income and expenditure for the year; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of

practice on local authority accounting and prepared in accordance with the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

Grant Thornton recognized that the  outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic had a 

significant impact on the normal operations of the Council – the Council was 

faced with the administration of grants to businesses, closure of car parks with

the additional challenges of reopening services under new government

guidelines and facilitating testing. 

Restrictions for non-essential travel meant that both the Council and audit team

had to embrace new working practices, including use of video conferencing,

remote  access to systems to independently verify data extracts, and the need for

an increased level of flexibility.

In November 2020 Grant Thornton reported:

✓An unqualified opinion on the Council’s accounts within their Annual Audit and 

Inspection letter. 

✓That they were satisfied that in all significant respects the Council had put in place 

proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources for the year ending 31 March 2020.

✓That they were satisfied with management's assessment of use of going concern

basis of accounting.

Grant Thornton also provided:

✓Update reports to each A&G meeting, providing a summary of emerging national 

issues and development that may be relevant to the Council.

✓Housing Benefit Certification.

The Council’s 2019/20 financial statements were for a period which was mainly 

prior to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. Grant Thornton have 

highlighted to the Council the challenges and financial risks associated with 

2020/21 and 2021/22 and have recommended that the Council continues to 

refresh its Medium-Term Financial Plan to reflect the impact of COVID-19 and 

to ensure the financial challenges are fully known.

Role of External Audit

17

Page 52



18

This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. It is stressed that no system of 

control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. In concluding 

this overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, three issues have been identified that 

need to be addressed to ensure continuous improvement in the Governance Framework. The 

aim is to address these weaknesses during the 2021/22 financial year, by way of an action 

plan for improving the governance framework and system of internal control. This will be 

subject to regular monitoring by the Committee.

Issue 

No.

Significant Issue Identified Summary of Action Proposed

1 The existing Asset Management Plan 

expired in 2017. Work is underway to 

develop a new Plan; however this 

remains in its early stages. Without a 

clear approved Plan to provide 

strategic direction, the Authority may 

not make best use of its assets, which 

in turn may hamper the achievement 

of strategic goals and outcomes.

This action is carried forward from the 2019/20 

AGS action plan.

A new Asset Management Plan will be drawn 

up, approved and published. The new Plan will 

be aligned closely with the Authority's Strategic 

Plan to ensure it will support and help deliver 

strategic priorities over the short to medium 

term.

Estates Manager, 

due by 31 March 2022

2 Leisure Contract (1610) 

The pandemic has severely delayed 

the timeframe and opportunities for 

implementing the post March 2022 

service (when the existing contract 

ends). Members resolved not to enter 

into contractual dispute but to work 

with 1610 until the end of the existing 

contractual period.

Engage external contracted employee to 

support the process and report to Full Council 

with options or to engage

Action Complete

New arrangements to be agreed with Members 

and implemented to ensure service delivery 

post March 2022. 

Chief Executive Officer

due by 31 March 2022

3 Government pressure to pay grants to 

local businesses to provide support 

during the pandemic. The grants were 

paid without the level of due diligence 

that officers would normally conduct 

and some grants may have been paid 

which shouldn't have been.

Recovery action has commenced.

Finance Manager

due by 30 June 2021

Accountability and Action Plans 

Page 53



P
age 54

A
genda Item

 12



Commercial in confidence

P
age 55



Commercial in confidence

•

• •

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 56



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 57



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 58



Commercial in confidence

P
age 59



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 60



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 61



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 62



Commercial in confidence

We have:

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

Net 

pension 

liability –

£52m

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

Minimum Revenue Provision -

£0.043m

•

•

•









P
age 66



Commercial in confidence

P
age 67



Commercial in confidence

P
age 68



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 69



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 70



Commercial in confidence

P
age 71



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 72



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 73



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 74



Commercial in confidence

-

-

-

P
age 75



Commercial in confidence

Transparency report 2020 
(grantthornton.co.uk)

P
age 76

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2020.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 77



P
age 78



Commercial in confidence







P
age 79



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

P
age 80



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 81



Commercial in confidence

P
age 82



Commercial in confidence

P
age 83



Commercial in confidence

P
age 84



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 85



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 86



Commercial in confidence

•

•
•

•

•

P
age 87



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 88



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 89



Commercial in confidence

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit and 

Governance Committee at its meeting on 5 October 2021.

Yours faithfully

Name……………………………

Position………………………….

Date…………………………….

Name……………………………

Position………………………….

Date…………………………….                                                             

Signed on behalf of the Council

P
age 90



Commercial in confidence

Grant Thornton UK LLP

2 Glass Wharf

Temple Quay

Bristol

BS2 0EL

T +44 (0)117 305 7600

F +44 (0)117 955 4934P
age 91



P
age 92



 
  

REPORT OF Finance Manager and S.151 Officer 

To: Audit and Governance  

Subject: Approval of the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Date: 5 October 2021 Reference:  

 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:     
 
For Members to approve the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 
 

 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

  
The Audit & Governance Committee is tasked with formally approving the Council Statement 
of Accounts 
 

2. REPORT 
 
The draft Statement of Accounts for the financial year 2020/21 have been subject to external 
audit under taken by Grant Thornton and their audit finding reports has been presented to 
members 

 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal Implications 
No specific legal implications 
 
Financial Implications 
As outlined in the report 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
None 
 
Equality/Diversity 
Not applicable 
 
Risk Management 
Not applicable 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report is in compliance with the Council’s Constitution 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
Not applicable 
 
Climate Change 
Not applicable 

Page 93

Agenda Item 13



 
  

 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 

The Audit & Governance  Committee is the committee charged with the formal approval of 
the annual statement of accounts . 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That Members: 
 
1. Formally approve the statement of accounts for the financial year 2020/21. 
 
 

 
 
 
Contact Officer:  David Heyes Section 151 Officer 

Page 94



torridge.gov.uk @torridgedc

Torridge Statement of Accounts 2020/21

So what were the key highlights from the draft accounts and are they still valid?

• £1.6m set aside into reserves (over and above budgeted transfers) as a result of surpluses 
on the revenue budgets.

• Pension fund deficit moved adversely by £10m, reflecting assumptions about future 
inflation

• Earmarked reserves increased to £15.7m from £8.9m (2019/20), however circa £3.9m set 
aside to meet Torridge’s share of the 2020/21 loss on the NNDR Collection Fund and 
£0.8m put aside to reserves with respect to Central Government Covid-19 grants received 
in advance.

• Rise in short terms creditors £12.6m from £3.4m (2019/20) reflects Business Support 
Grants monies received from Central Government but not distributed.

• Rise in short term debtors £8.9m vs £2.9m (2019/20) reflects that (Central Government. 
Devon County, Fire) owe Torridge for Business Rates income paid over based upon budget 
rather than actual.

• £41.7m of expenditure and income Excluded from the accounts as it relates to business 
support grants where the Council is simply acting as an agent of the Government.

• ALL OF THE ABOVE REMAIN TRUE

P
age 95



torridge.gov.uk @torridgedc

Torridge Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Changes from the draft accounts
• Various minor typos
• Some added emphasis and points of clarity in narrative

• Page 9 Capital expenditure narrative, added explanation that the main reason 
for slippage on the  capital program being the failure to deliver the Environmental 
Centre.

• Page 16 Revised to include statement as to projected balance on the Transition in 
Government Funding reserve by 2025/26

P
age 96



torridge.gov.uk @torridgedc

Torridge Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Draft

Final

No longer a required 
disclosure for completeness 
2020/21 figures included: 
Note will not appear in 
2021/22 Statement of 
Accounts

P
age 97



torridge.gov.uk @torridgedc

Torridge Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Notes added to the bottom of note 18 detailing the Council Depreciation 
Policy

P
age 98



torridge.gov.uk @torridgedctorridge.gov.uk @torridgedc

Torridge Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Added narrative at the bottom of  Assets held for sale note, to include land at 
Cleave Wood

P
age 99



torridge.gov.uk @torridgedc

Torridge Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Corrections

Audit Fees Note

P
age 100



 

Commercial in confidence 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

2 Glass Wharf 

Temple Quay 

Bristol 

BS2 0EL 

 

5 October 2021 

 

Dear Sirs 

Torridge District Council 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of Torridge 

District Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to 

whether the Council financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 and applicable law.  

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered 

necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Financial Statements 

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 ("the Code"); in 

particular the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council and 

these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. 

iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material 

effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-

compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 

control to prevent and detect fraud. 

v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured 

at fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the 

preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and 

adequately disclosed in the financial statements. We understand our responsibilities includes 

identifying and considering alternative, methods, assumptions or source data that would be 

equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why these alternatives were rejec ted 

in favour of the estimate used. We are satisfied that the methods, the data and the significant 

assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates and their related disclosures are 

appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in 

accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. 

vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of 

pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent 

with our knowledge.  We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and 

properly accounted for.  We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have 

been identified and properly accounted for.  

 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 14



 

Commercial in confidence 

 

vii. Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 

b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged 

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring 

items requiring separate disclosure. 

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 

disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards 

and the Code. 

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International 

Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been 

adjusted or disclosed. 

x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures 

changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The Council’s financial statements 

have been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and 

are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

xi. We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings 

Report and attached. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these misstatements 

brought to our attention as they are immaterial to the results of the Council and its financial 

position at the year-end. The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including 

omissions. 

xii. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance 

with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

xiii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of 

assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xiv. We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Council’s 

financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis  and have not identified any 

material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that :  

a. the nature of the Council means that, notwithstanding any intention to liquidate the 

Council or cease its operations in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate 

to adopt the going concern basis of accounting because, in such an event, services it 

performs can be expected to continue to be delivered by related public authorities and 

preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis will sti ll provide a faithful 

representation of the items in the financial statements 

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its financial statements 

on the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and  

c. the Council’s system of internal control has not identified any events or conditions 

relevant to going concern. 

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council's ability to continue as a going 

concern need to be made in the financial statements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 102



 

Commercial in confidence 

Information Provided 

xv. We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of 

the Council’s financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; 

and 

c. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements, in compliance with the 

nationally specified social distancing requirements established by the government in 

response to  the Covid-19 pandemic. from whom you determined it necessary to 

obtain audit evidence. 

xvi. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is 

aware. 

xvii. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 

statements. 

xviii. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 

may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

 

xix. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are 

aware of and that affects the Council and involves: 

a. management; 

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

xx. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 

affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, 

regulators or others. 

xxi. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 

with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial 

statements. 

xxii. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the related party 

relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

xxiii. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 

should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

Annual Governance Statement 

xxiv. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk 

assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant 

risks that are not disclosed within the AGS. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103



 

Commercial in confidence 

Narrative Report 

xxv. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Council's 

financial and operating performance over the period covered by the Council’s financial 

statements. 

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s  Audit and Governance 

Committee at its meeting on 5 October 2021. 

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

Name…………………………… 

 

Position…………………………. 

 

Date……………………………. 

 

 

Name…………………………… 

 

Position…………………………. 

 

Date……………………………. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104



 

Commercial in confidence 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



       . 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2021/22 

 

 Cycle 

1 

Cycle 2 Cycle 

3 

Cycle 4 Cycle 

5 

Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 

8 

  27/7/21  05/10/21  18/01/22 29/03/22  
         

        

Audit 
Committee 

   
Effectiveness of 
A&G Committee 

  
 

 

Risk 
Management 

 Corporate Risk    Corporate Risk Corporate Risk 
 

Internal Audit 

        

 Audit Report Issued  
Audit Report 

Issued 
 Audit Report Issued 

Audit Report 
Issued 

 

 Progress with agreed 
actions 

 
Progress with 
agreed actions 

 
Progress with agreed 

actions 
Progress with 
agreed actions 

 

       
Draft Audit Plan 

2021/22 

 

Accounts 

 Draft Statement of 
Accounts 

 
Presentation & 

Approval of 

Accounts & AGS 

 
Preparation for final 

account 
 

 

 Annual Governance 
Statement 

 
Report on  

Going Concern 
  

 
 

   
Letter of  

Representation 
  

 
 

   
Final Annual 

Governance 

  
 

 

External 
Audit 

 Update Report    Update Report Update Report  

   
Audit Finding 

Report 
 

Annual Certification 
Letter 

External Audit 
Plan 

 

   
   

 
 

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately. 

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 15


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Action List
	7 Audit Reports Issued To Date
	8 Effectiveness of the Audit Committee
	9 Audit Actions
	10 Going Concern Report
	11 Annual Governance Statement
	12 Audit finding report 2020-21 statement of accounts
	13 Approval of the 2020-21 Financial Statements and presentation from the Section 151 Officer
	Statement of accounts presentation (Agenda item 13)

	14 Letter of Representation - Grant Thornton
	15 Forward Plan

